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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Maintenance of certification for physicians. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 

 
Chairman Keiser:  Opens the hearing on HB 1433. 
 
Rep Kasper~Distrct 46:   Introduces HB 1433 & it deals with maintenance of certification 
(MOC).  There is a problem with certification for MOC. 
 
Courtney Koebele~Executive Director-ND Medical Association:  Attachment 1, 2 & 3. 
 
9:50 
 
Rep Adams:  The CME, isn’t that standard?   
 
Courtney Koebele: That CME (current medical education) is maybe not the standard but 
there are people who are here that can answer that better. 
 
Rep Adams:  Once they are done with their specialty, isn’t there a standard to maintain for 
continuing ed & is it the board who sets the standard? 
 
Courtney Koebele:   Physicians have to take the MOC in order to maintain their license that 
the medical board approves.  There are different boards that maintain that certification & the 
bill allows more choice. 
 
Rick Becker~Physcian:  Attachment 4.  I wasn’t aware of this bill. I sent this letter concerning 
MOC. Talks about his experience & that MOC is a farce & an embarrassment. 
 
18:45 
 
Rep C Johnson:  Is the MOC used by the insurance to deny claims? 
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Rick Becker:  I’m not aware of anyone that hasn’t been covered but it does eventually effect 
the person. 
 
Rep Adams:   Who maintains the MOC? 
 
Rick Becker:  It’s the American Society of Plastic Surgeons for plastic surgery.   It’s a 
national thing. 
 
Rep Kasper:  MOC ceases to become required, how will you continue to be qualified in what 
you do? 
 
Rick Becker:  The CME’s maintain the certification with class 1 & class 2. 
 
Rep Kasper:  Do you think that if you stopped the MOC’s, will there be retribution? 
 
Rick Becker:  I don’t think there would be retribution but they could get entangled with other 
things. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Where did the MOC come into being & why did it start? 
 
Rick Becker:  If I want to keep my MOC & jump through the hoops.  It came from a push 
from other medical specialties.  There was concern that the government would start 
governing & boards wanted to implement their own. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  If you don’t do the MOC, how will that affect you. 
 
Rick Becker:  I can’t have hospitals privileges & ER’s.  Without certification, I can’t get 
insurance. 
 
Fadel Nammour~Gastroenterologist with an established practice, Fargo: Attachment 5. 
 
39:35 
 
Rep Adams:  If MOC doesn’t certify you & you need to be renewed, is that the national board 
that will renew your license? 
 
Fadel Nammour:  What we are trying to achieve here is to choose. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  The amendment takes out all my concerns.  I curious about the rational 
of the amendment. 
 
Fadel Nammour:  We believe in choice.  We are protecting the rights hospital, facilities but 
the rights of physicians. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  It does create transparency.  Section 4, why did you remove that. 
 
Fadel Nammour:  We don’t think it would be an issue taking it out. 
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Rep Kasper:  What percent of physicians would support this bill. 
 
Fadel Nammour:  I believe, all of them, well, the majority of them.   
 
44:20 
 
Tom Strinden~Estalished Ophthalmology Practice, speaking on behalf of the NDSEPS 
& the NDMA:  Attachment 6. 
 
55:10 
 
Misty Anderson~Internal Medical Physician in Valley City:  Expresses the concern that 
everyone wants something done about MOC.  I like the choice.   
 
Chairman Keiser:  Anyone else here to testify in HB 1433. Closes the hearing.  What are 
the wishes of the committee? 
 
Rep Kasper:  Moves the adoption of the amendment 19.0967.01001. 
 
Vice Chairman Lefor:  Second. 
 
Voice vote ~ motion carried. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  What are the wishes? 
 
Rep Kasper:  Moves a Do Pass as Amended on HB 1433 
 
Rep D Ruby:  Second. 
 
Chairman Keiser:  Further discussion? 
 
Roll call was taken on HB 1433 for a Do Pass as Amended with 12 yes, 0 no, 2 absent 
& Rep M Nelson is the carrier. 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to maintenance of certification for physicians; and to declare an 

emergency. 
 

Minutes:                                                 Attachment # 1 - 4 

 
Chairman Klein: Called the meeting to order on HB 1433, all members were present. 
 
Representative Rick Becker, District 7: Introduced the bill and provided Attachment #1. In 
a nutshell, this is about maintenance of certification for physicians. There is a whole process, 
stringent requirements and testing. We are required to maintain CMEs, Continuing Medical 
Education. The maintenance of certification can become an arduous process, time 
consuming and costly. These hours of paperwork, not edifying knowledge, occurs every 3 
years. On the 10th year, there is a big test. The letter I submitted to you was a let I wrote to 
the editor of the journal for the American Society of Plastic Surgeons telling them the process 
was a sham. Continued with a personal story of how when taking his last national test he had 
failed until he bought their DVD set, in which he then scored a 100%. The test costs hundreds 
of dollars, the stay in a hotel, and travel to Minneapolis, all very expensive. After the first time 
and failing taking 4 hours, the second time with the DVDs it took him an hour. Every single 
answer was in the DVDs, so that he did not even have to read the question, to know the 
answer. This does not protect the public; it secures the relative validity of the boards. I am 
advocating for this bill, because it states this maintenance of certification process probably 
does not warrant the credence we give it.   
 
(6:00) Senator Piepkorn: What would be the purpose of the boards wanting to fill the 
coffers? What do they do with that money? 
 
Representative Becker: I think there is a natural tendency to create this perceived need for 
greater intervention. It may have come out of good intentions at the beginning with protecting 
the public from physicians that had not done any continuing education in years. Now, there 
is a lot of money going into this and a lot of lost productivity. It is not doing anything to help 
the public.  
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Senator Piepkorn: Is there any consistency between special fees with different areas of 
practice? 
 
Representative Becker: I cannot answer that. They work along the same protocols; they 
have different requirements.  
 
Chairman Klein: We might get that answer I see shaking heads behind you. 
 
Senator Vedaa: Is this legislation unique to North Dakota, or are other states doing this? 
 
Representative Becker: That is a question you would think I would have the answer to, but 
I do not.  
 
Chairman Klein: I see nodding heads again on that.  
 
Courtney Koebele, Executive Director of the North Dakota Medical Association: 
Testified in support of HB 1433 and provided Attachment #2. Introduced Fadel Nammour 
and Tom Strinden, both from Fargo.  
 
Fadel Nammour, President of North Dakota Medical Association: Testified in favor of HB 
1433 and provided Attachment #3.  
 
(22:07) Senator Piepkorn: What does CME stand for? 
 
Fadel Nammour: Continuous Medical Education.  
(Continued testimony on page 3.)  
Just to answer questions from before, there is no consistency between different medical 
specialty boards. Every board has its way to determine what they will use. The money goes 
to financial salaries, buying condominiums, spending money unwisely. 
 
(26:09) Chairman Klein: Can North Dakota carve ourselves out? This isn’t a national thing? 
 
Fadel Nammour: 11 states have already done that. This is not a federal requirement; it is 
just a decision by facilities.  
 
Chairman Klein: Your facility can determine whether you do this? There is that flexibility? 
(That was confirmed.) 
 
Senator Kreun: If we do this, who will be responsibility to make sure the new group will do 
what it is supposed to? 
 
Fadel Nammour: I am not sure what group you are talking about. The facility itself would be 
the one to oversee physician credentials.  
 
Senator Kreun: If we put this into law, is the Attorney general going to make sure you are 
doing what the CME does? This is going to be a law it is not voluntary anymore. Who will 
oversee this? 
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Fadel Nammour: Many things can oversee this law. The hospitals, board of Medical 
Examiners. If there are any lawsuits then the Attorney General can get involved. You do not 
need a group, it is already there. There are already boards to oversee position credentials.  
 
Chairman Klein: The way you see this, the hospital board would say you do not have to do 
this anymore, we have exempted ND. If this organization comes after you, they would have 
to sue the hospital, probably the credential board and have to determine actions from there. 
 
Fadel Nammour: The ABMS cannot sue the hospital for the board of certification. The 
hospital made the decision to accept ABMS or to accept some other board for credentialing.  
 
Senator Kreun: If you were acting like the NCAA before, are we taking away in chapter 
2316, are we taking out anything or just adding? 
 
Fadel Nammour: We are not taking anything away, just changing the process. There will 
still be board certification. It will be a choice between this board and that board.  

 
Senator Roers: Have the hospitals endorsed this plan? 
 
Fadel Nammour: Yes, that is why the bill was amended after talking with them. We have 
their approval on those changes.  
 
Chairman Klein: And since you are the president of the medical group, you guys like it too? 
 
Fadel Nammour: Yes. 
 
(31:42) Dr. Tom Strinden, speaking on behalf of NDSEPS and the NDMA: Testified in 
support of HB 1433 and provided Attachment #4.  
 
(42:24) Senator Burckhard: You say you are proud that North Dakota is a “right to work 
state”, that is because? 
 
Dr. Strinden: I have become a member of the union without knowing it. That union is the 
ABMS and American Board of Ophthalmology. It was eluded to that 5.4B over 10 years, they 
have lobbyists, but they never showed up to stand against us because they do not have a 
leg to stand on. We need to protect the ability to practice. You do not need to be board 
certified to practice in North Dakota. 95% of physicians in North Dakota agree with this. I 
want an alternative to provide for our physicians.  
 
Chairman Klein: I do not know when North Dakota became a right to work state, but 
Wisconsin was in the last few years. 
 
Senator Kreun: We do not have anything in code right now to do anything you are talking 
about. Right now, a non-profit organization governs itself. Putting this into law, you will not 
be able to govern yourselves. There is nothing in the Century Code right now about this. 
Unless I am wrong? If we put this into law, you will be governed by us.  
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Dr. Strinden: Courtney please come up. The recommendation would be that we do not have 
a requirement for MOCK in order to practice. That is what the ABMS vision study 
recommended. We are also allowing an alternative board to come in. We do not care who is 
overseeing us as long as they have our best interest in mind. We found with the ABMS and 
that money train, they treat us as if we are just funding a bigger bureaucracy. We are trying 
to bring that down a notch.  
 
Senator Kreun: I am not opposed to this, just wondering where it fits in. 
 
Courtney Koebele: This is all new law. It will be in the insurance code and the hospital code 
that governs hospitals.  
 
Chairman Klein: It is like any other rule or law we put in affect. It is governed by the section 
of the code that it is in. If there are any issues with the MOCK group turning on the state of 
North Dakota, we are looking at a ‘what if’ situation. The Attorney General defends all the 
laws North Dakota passes, but I do not think it would get to that point. 
 
Courtney Koebele: I agree, it just makes it clear that it is an optional program. ABMS would 
have no stand to challenge this. This complies with all the hospital requirements.  
 
Chairman Klein: I would suggest after the hearing, Senator Kreun, you would look for that 
comfort level off line. We do not want to be willy-nilly letting these docs do patient care. 
 
Courtney Koebele: I worked with Jennifer Clark to draft this bill. 
 
Chairman Klein: Called for any further testimony. Closed the hearing on HB 1433.  
Senator Kreun, you have some work to do. Get to your comfort level and we will work on this 
later. Recessed committee.  
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
Relating to maintenance of certification for physicians; and to declare an 

emergency. 
 
 

Minutes:                                                 None. 

 
Chairman Klein: Called committee to order to do work on HB 1433. 
 
 
 
Senator Kreun: Having understood the goals of the individuals, I move a Do Pass on 
HB 1433. 
 
Senator Roers: Seconded. 
 
 
 
Senator Klein: This multi-billion dollar organization doesn’t like states dropping out of their 
groups.  
 
Senator Kreun: They simply want a governing position so that it is fair and equitable to their 
group. 
 
 
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.  
 
Motioned carried.  
 
Senator Kreun will carry the bill.  
 
 
Chairman Klein: Adjourned the committee.   
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